ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
SENATE JUDI Cl ARY STANDI NG COWM TTEE
March 28, 2006
8:36 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Ral ph Seekins, Chair
Senator Charlie Huggins, Vice Chair
Senator Gene Therri aul t

Senator Hollis French

Senator G etchen GQuess

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present

COW TTEE CALENDAR

CS FOR HOUSE BILL NO. 318(FIN) am

"An Act limting the exercise of em nent domain."
HEARD AND HELD

CS FOR HOUSE BI LL NO. 408(FIN) am

"An Act relating to the standard of proof required to termnate
parental rights in child- in-need-of-aid proceedings; relating
to a healing arts practitioner's duty to report a child
adversely affected by or wthdrawing from exposure to a

controlled substance or alcohol; relating to disclosure of
confidential or privileged information about certain children by
t he Depart nents of Heal t h and Soci al Servi ces and

Adm nistration; relating to permanent fund dividends paid to
foster children and adopted children; amending Rule 18, Al aska
Child in Need of Aid Rules of Procedure; and providing for an
effective date."

HEARD AND HELD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 318

SHORT TI TLE: LI M TATI ON ON EM NENT DOVAI N
SPONSOR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) MCGUI RE, HOLM HAWKER

01/ 09/ 06 (H) PREFI LE RELEASED 12/ 30/ 05
01/ 09/ 06 (H) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
01/ 09/ 06 (H) JUD, FIN

01/ 11/ 06 (H) JUD AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 120

01/ 11/ 06 (H) Heard & Hel d

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -1- March 28, 2006



01/11/ 06
01/ 25/ 06
01/ 25/ 06
01/ 25/ 06
02/ 01/ 06
02/ 01/ 06
02/ 03/ 06
02/ 03/ 06
02/ 03/ 06
02/ 06/ 06
02/ 06/ 06
02/ 06/ 06
02/ 06/ 06
02/ 09/ 06
02/ 09/ 06
02/ 09/ 06
02/ 10/ 06
02/ 10/ 06
02/ 10/ 06
02/ 10/ 06
02/ 21/ 06
02/ 21/ 06
02/ 22/ 06
02/ 22/ 06
03/ 02/ 06
03/ 02/ 06
03/ 02/ 06
03/ 09/ 06
03/ 09/ 06
03/ 09/ 06
03/ 21/ 06
03/ 21/ 06
03/ 22/ 06
03/ 22/ 06
03/ 22/ 06
03/ 28/ 06

BILL: HB 408

NN NN AN AN AN AN AN AN AN AN AN AN AN NN AN NN NN NN

LLLLLL2VLLVIIIIIIIIIIZIZIZIZIZIZIZIZIZIIZE

(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)

M NUTE( JUD)

JUD AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 120
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( JUD)

JUD AT 1:00 PM CAPI TCL 120

-- Meeting Cancel ed --

JUD AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 120
Moved CSHB 318(JUD) Qut of Conmittee
M NUTE( JUD)

JUD RPT CS(JUD) NT 3DP 1NR 2AM
DP: W LSON, ANDERSCN, MCGU RE;
NR: GRUENBERG,

AM  GARA, KOTT

FIN AT 1: 30 PM HOUSE FI NANCE 519
Moved CSHB 318(FIN) Qut of Conmittee
M NUTE( FI N)

FIN RPT CS(FIN) NT 2DP 3NR 3AM
DP: HAWKER, MEYER

NR: KERTTULA, JOULE, WEYHRAUCH
AM STOLTZE, HOLM FOSTER
TRANSM TTED TO (S)

VERSI ON: CSHB 318(FIN) AM

READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
JUD, FIN

JUD AT 8: 30 AM BUTROVI CH 205
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( JUD)

JUD AT 8: 30 AM BUTROVI CH 205
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( JUD)

JUD AT 8: 30 AM BUTROVI CH 205
Schedul ed But Not Heard

JUD AT 8: 30 AM BUTROVI CH 205
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( JUD)

JUD AT 8: 30 AM BUTROVI CH 205

SHORT TI TLE: DEFI NI TION OF CH LD ABUSE AND NEGLECT

SPONSOR( s) :

01/ 30/ 06
01/ 30/ 06
02/ 07/ 06
02/ 07/ 06
02/ 07/ 06
02/ 09/ 06

SENATE JUD COW TTEE

I3zz32

RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
HES, FIN

HES AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( HES)

HES AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

- 2- March 28, 2006



02/ 09/ 06 (H Moved CSHB 408(HES) Qut of Committee

02/ 09/ 06 (H M NUTE( HES)

02/ 15/ 06 (H HES RPT CS(HES)NT 3DP 2NR

02/ 15/ 06 (H DP: GARDNER, GATTO W LSON;

02/ 15/ 06 (H NR: ANDERSON, Cl SSNA

02/ 22/ 06 (H) FIN AT 1:30 PM HOUSE FI NANCE 519

02/ 22/ 06 (H -- Meeting Cancel ed --

03/ 01/ 06 (H FIN AT 1:30 PM HOUSE FI NANCE 519

03/ 01/ 06 (H) Schedul ed But Not Heard

03/ 07/ 06 (H FIN AT 1: 30 PM HOUSE FI NANCE 519

03/ 07/ 06 (H Moved CSHB 408(FIN) Qut of Conmittee

03/ 07/ 06 (H M NUTE( FI N)

03/ 08/ 06 (H FIN RPT CS(FIN) NT 3DP 5NR

03/ 08/ 06 (H) DP: KELLY, MEYER, CHENAULT;

03/ 08/ 06 (H NR  HAWKER, STOLTZE, KERTTULA, JOULE,
MOSES

03/ 20/ 06 (H TRANSM TTED TO (S)

03/ 20/ 06 (H VERSI ON:  CSHB 408(FI N) AM

03/ 22/ 06 (S READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

03/ 22/ 06 (S) JUD, FIN

03/ 22/ 06 (S) JUD AT 8: 30 AM BUTROVI CH 205

03/ 22/ 06 (S <Bill Hearing Postponed to 03/23/06>

03/ 23/ 06 (S) JUD AT 8:30 AM BUTROVI CH 205

03/ 23/ 06 (S -- Meeting Cancel ed --

03/ 28/ 06 (S) JUD AT 8: 30 AM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

Representative Lesil MQiire

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor of HB 318

Crai g Johnson, Legislative Aide

Staff to Representative Lesil MGuire

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions regarding HB 318

Pet er Putzier, Senior Assistant Attorney GCeneral

Depart nent of Law

PO Box 110300

Juneau, AK 99811-0300

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions regarding HB 318

Dave Feeken
Al aska Associ ation of Realtors

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 3- March 28, 2006



POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Commented on HB 318

Garvan Bucari a
Wasil |l a, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Cormmented on HB 318

Rynni eva Moss, Legislative Aide

Staff to Representative John Coghill
Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: I ntroduced HB 408

Tamry Sandoval , Deputy Comm ssi oner

Ofice of Children's Services

PO Box 110630

Juneau, AK 99811-0630

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions regardi ng HB 408

Jan Rut herdal e, Assistant Attorney General

Departnent of Law

PO Box 110300

Juneau, AK 99811-0300

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions regarding HB 408

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR RALPH SEEKINS <called the Senate Judiciary Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 8:36:11 AM Present were Senators
Hollis French, Charlie Huggins, Getchen Guess, and Chair Ral ph
Seeki ns.

HB 318-LI M TATI ON ON EM NENT DOVAI N

8:37: 05 AM

CHAI R RALPH SEEKINS announced CSHB 318(FIN) AM to be up for
consideration. He said his intent for the day was to have a good
round tabl e discussion on the bill.

REPRESENTATI VE LESIL MCAQU RE i ntroduced herself for the record.

8:38:18 AM

SENATOR HOLLIS FRENCH advised Representative MQ@ire of a
menor andum received from Don Bullock of the Legislative Legal
and Research Services Division dated March 22, 2006 that advised
that any “escape hatch” from the em nent domain bill would be

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -4- March 28, 2006



probl ematic. He expressed concern that a |ocal government would
not be able to control emnent domain in its own conmunity.

Senat or Gene Therriault joined the neeting.

REPRESENTATI VE MCGUI RE responded she would |ook favorably at a
“voting threshold” if that is what the conmttee preferred. She
rem nded the conmttee that Kelo versus Cty of New London cane
about due to a local action taken by a local governnent. She
specul ated that the people of the City of New London m ght w sh
that their state had legislation to protect them at the state
| evel when the city |et them down.

8:44:.12 AM

SENATOR GRETCHEN GUESS advi sed that the discussion in the Senate
Judiciary Standing Committee has been whether or not to allow a
| ocal governing body by a two-thirds majority to make the
decision. She noted the subject was a difficult bal ance between
|l ocal control and free will and expressed concern that smaller
communities do not get the representation that they need in the
state capitol

REPRESENTATI VE MCGQUI RE said she liked the idea of a two-thirds
t hr eshol d.

SENATOR FRENCH noted the non-del egable aspect is inmportant and
the greater mmjority provision protects mnority rights. He
expressed support for the idea.

CHAI R SEEKI NS agreed. He said he objects when the city assenbly
responsibility is handed off to private devel opers.

8:48:48 AM

REPRESENTATI VE MCGUI RE noted state policy makers should ensure
that the rights of the people are equal for all. She said she
woul d accept the will of the conmttee. Paragraph 7 on page 4
allows for a stopgap because it is difficult to think of every
situation that the bill m ght cover.

8:51:57 AM

MR. JOHNSON added four large comrunities have already made the
decision to enact ordinances simlar to this legislation. The
di scussion on the bill is really whether to afford the rest of
the state the same protection of em nent domain.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 5- March 28, 2006



CHAIR SEEKINS said he did not want to step on local control
Everyone wants to protect private property but at the sanme tine
Al askans know the inportance of access to recreational areas.

8:54:26 AM

REPRESENTATI VE MCGUI RE pointed out that the issue goes both
ways. The Tony Know es Coastal Trail runs right through her
district, she stated, and sone people love it while sone hate
it. The local control bypass allows a neasure of balance to the
bill.

CHAIR SEEKINS noted the difference between a developer and
conservationist is that the developer wants to build a cabin
this summer where as the conservationist built his |ast summer.
He said access to recreation was a huge topic in Al aska.

8:57.:38 AM

REPRESENTATI VE MCGUI RE agreed there are unique circunmstances in
this state. She said the argue against |ocal control would be
that the bill takes care of people s concerns regarding access
to recreational areas, such as navigable waters and hunting and
fishing rights. The bill would not Iimt the state’'s ability to
use the power of emnent domain in any other circunstance except
to take property from one private entity and transfer it to
another private entity. In a state where private ownership
represents one percent of the land, there should be creative
options for taking land to acconplish the goal.

CHAIR SEEKINS stated the recreational side was not restricted to
private-to-private transfer.

REPRESENTATI VE MCGUI RE st ood correct ed.

9:00:41 AM

SENATOR GQUESS noted page 5, line 11 lists what is excluded from
the definition of recreational. She referred to subsection (e)
on page 4 and said there is nothing to override that provision.

REPRESENTATI VE MCGUI RE responded that subsection (7) was added
due to the fact that the bill already had many exclusions. She
said she would support it if the commttee chose to add the sane
| egi sl ative approval provision to the recreational side of the
bill.

MR, JOHNSON advised it would be a sinple fix for the commttee.
On page 6 line 18 sinply just change the (1)-(6) to (1)-(7)

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 6- March 28, 2006



That would roll the legislative oversight into the private
property prong.

9: 03: 55 AM

REPRESENTATI VE MCGQUI RE advised the commttee that the concepts
devel oped separately for the economc and recreational aspects.
Peopl e question the reason the state could take their homes for
recreational reasons if they can’t for econom c purposes.

SENATOR GUESS referred to page 3, lines 29-31 and asked whet her
that would allow for a statute to be created that would allow a
real estate conpany to exercise eninent donain.

MR, JOHNSON said the definition of private person could be
utilities, pipeline conpanies, or any one other than the
gover nnent .

REPRESENTATI VE MCGUI RE advi sed “private person” is defined in AS
09. 55. 240.

9:08:41 AM

PETER PUTZI ER, Senior Assistant Attorney GCeneral, Departnent of
Law (DOL), responded to the question regarding “private person.”
He handed out a default definition of “ private person” and said
it includes corporations and a wide variety of other entities.
Utilities have been granted the right of enminent donain. Lines
29-31 are in the bill to make it clear that their authority
remai ns status quo.

9:09: 51 AM
SENATOR @QUESS said for the record she read AS 09.55.240 and
there is no definition.

MR, PUTZIER said if there were a question regarding what
“private person” neans, it would be as defined in Title 1

SENATOR FRENCH asked the nunber of express authorizations that
exist in statute regardi ng em nent domain.

VR PUTZIER offered a list of all the authorizations to
conmi tt ee nenbers.

9:12:28 AM

DAVE FEEKEN, Al aska Association of Realtors testified that the
Kel o decision defined econom c developnent as a public use,
taking private property from one owner and giving it to another
for the purpose of econom c development. In a survey conducted

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -7- March 28, 2006



by the Association of Realtors, 97 percent were opposed to that
type of em nent domain powers. The US Suprene Court found in the
Kelo case that pursuant to a well conceived plan, the public
benefits through increased tax revenues was good enough to be
called a public use.

Wth only one percent of Alaska’s land in private hands, the use
of em nent domain needs to be severely restricted. Currently
there are 10,000 active private-to-private em nent domain case
takings in process in the United States. “Your hone is only your
castle so long as sonebody doesn’t conme along and convince the
city council they have a better use,” he stated. The key to
em nent domain use is a good definition of “public use” and
“econom ¢ devel opnent,” he advised. The Al aska Association of
Realtors wll <continue to work on emnent domain |egislation
t hroughout the sunmer.

9:16: 02 AM

GARVAN BUCARI A, Wasilla, testified that the |anguage of the bill
was perplexing and difficult to keep up wth. H's previous
testinmony questioned the need for wusing emnent donmain for
recreational purposes. He said he is subject to em nent domain
under the 2004-2005 Departnment of Transportation and Public
Facilities study, which has notified himthat his property m ght
be taken for a main street widening project in Wasilla. Two
years later, he said, he still does not know what the DOT is
pl anning to do and it has been very stressful.

He agreed with the local control provision but said it was a
relative question. He has attended many neetings on the issue
and said he is aggrieved by the lack of public participation
even though it affects everyone in the conmmunity. He believes
there is not sufficient public notification wthin the
conmuni ties.

9:20: 37 AM
SENATOR HUGGE NS asked the | ocation of M. Bucaria s property.

MR. BUCARI A responded with the location of his property. The
proposed road would go through his house and conpletely destroy
the center of Wasilla, he stated.

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked the length of tinme he has lived in his
house.

MR. BUCARIA said he has lived in his house since 1986 but has
been an Al aska resident since 1975.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 8- March 28, 2006



9:23: 23 AM

SENATOR GUESS noved Anendnent 1. Page 4, line 9: Delete “by |aw
and following “transfer”: Insert “in an Act, the subject of
which is limted to the transfer.”

CHAI R SEEKI NS obj ected for the purpose of discussion.

SENATOR GUESS explained Amendnent 1 would ensure that if the
Legi sl ature does approve a transfer of property that it does so
under a separate bill, which would ensure public process.

REPRESENTATI VE MCGUI RE expressed support.

Hearing no further objections, Amendmrent 1 was adopted
unani nousl y.

SENATOR GUESS noved Anmendnment 2. Page 5, line 8: Delete “snall
boat harbor.”

CHAI R SEEKI NS obj ected for the purpose of discussion.

SENATOR GUESS advised Anendrment 2 would renove “small boat
harbor” from recreational facility or project. She expressed
concern over unintended consequences due to a lack of
definition.

SENATOR THERRI AULT said the small boat harbor |and woul d al ready
be owned by the state and wondered whether Senator GQuess’s
concern was over the access to it.

9:25: 50 AM
SENATOR GUESS responded she was unconfortable since the phrase
was undefined and nebul ous.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked the bill sponsor where the |anguage
cane from

MR, JOHNSON advised they tried to enconpass as nuch as possible
with regard to recreational facilities. He said they could not
come up with a scenario where a hone would be taken for a smal
boat har bor.

CHAI R SEEKI NS noted the restrictions would be to within 250 feet
of the home.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -9- March 28, 2006



MR. JOHNSON surmised the small boat harbor would be mainly in
the water anyway so the likelihood of the taking of any property
woul d be difficult to conceive.

CHAI R SEEKINS speculated that the access to the harbor could
affect private property.

MR. JOHNSON agr eed.

9:27:55 AM
CHAI R SEEKI NS renoved his objection.

SENATOR HUGGE NS cautioned the commttee against deleting “small
boat harbor” too quickly. He suggested the commttee work on a
definition first.

9: 30: 55 AM
SENATOR GUESS asked Senator Huggins whether page 5, Iline 9
woul dn’t cover his concerns.

SENATOR HUGAE NS i ndi cat ed no.

9:33:12 AM

CHAI R SEEKI NS expressed concern over the lack of definition. He
posed a hypothetical scenario of a right-of-way to a navigable
stream |In order to acconmobdate the ability to |aunch a boat
the city mght need to take a small portion of the waterfront
and that could be wthin 250 feet of someone’s hone. The
guestion remai ns whether that would be defined as a snall boat
har bor .

9:36: 04 AM

SENATOR @GQUESS withdrew Anmendnment 2 in order to obtain a
definition of snmall boat harbor.

REPRESENTATI VE MCGQUI RE committed to work on that issue.

SENATOR GUESS noved Anendnent 3. Page 6, line 4: Delete “rather
than primarily for recreation.”

CHAI R SEEKI NS obj ected for the purpose of discussion.

SENATOR GUESS explained that the words “rather than primarily
for recreation” bother her since the conmttee has not defined
the word “recreation.”

9:38: 20 AM

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 10- March 28, 2006



REPRESENTATI VE MCGUI RE di d not object to the proposed anendnent.

CHAI R SEEKINS renoved his objection and the conmttee adopted
Amendrent 3 unani nousl y.

9:40: 38 AM

SENATOR FRENCH advised the comittee that he would have a
proposed amendnment concerning the locally elected body having to
approve transfer of property by a two-thirds vote and that it is
non- del egabl e.

CHAIR SEEKINS said he did not object provided there were
provi sions for notice and public hearings.

SENATOR HUGGE NS expressed support for |ocal control

CHAIR SEEKINS held the bill in commttee.
At ease 9:46:52 AM

HB 408- DEFI NI TI ON OF CHI LD ABUSE AND NEG_ECT

9:54: 55 AM
CHAIR SEEKINS announced CSHB 408(FIN AM to be wup for
consi derati on.

Rynni eva Mbss, Legislative Aide for Representative John Coghill
introduced the bill. She advised the commttee that the bill was
the product of a friendly takeover of the CGovernor’s
| egislation, which originally defined child abuse and involved
medi cal personnel who were involved in a delivery to report any
suspected adverse conditions to a newborn child from al cohol or
drug abuse. Language from HB 327 has been added as well and many
menbers of the House have added amendnents al ong the way.

9:57: 03 AM

M5. MOSS summarized the sections of the bill. Section 1 raises
the level of proof from “a preponderance of evidence.” Section 2
rai ses the standard for term nation of parental rights to “clear
and convincing evidence.” Section 3 contains |anguage clean up
to accommopdate Section 2. Section 4 clarifies that the enpl oyee
has five working days to respond once the information 1is
requested. Section 5 would allow OCS the ability to disclose the
nature and validity of any report of harm if the parent nakes
public disclosure, if the perpetrator is charged with a crine,
and if there is a death or near death of a child.

9:59: 34 AM

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -11- March 28, 2006



CHAI R SEEKINS asked Ms. Moss to define what constitutes “public
di scl osure.”

M5. MOSS responded that would be disclosure of confidential
information to the public. It would normally be disclosed to the
press.

TAMW  SANDOVAL, Deputy Conmi ssioner, Ofice of Children's
Services (OCS) agreed with the description.

10: 00: 56 AM

M5. MOSS continued Section 6 broadens the Departnment’s ability
to discuss a report of harmwith any child who is in the care of
a perpetrator. Section 7 cones froma real |ife incident where
the foster parents took the children’s Permanent Fund divi dends
(PFD). The noney would be put into a trust and once the child
ages out in the systemthey would be able to file for the PFD

CHAIR SEEKINS clarified that the Departnent of Health and Soci al
Services (DHSS) has the affirmative responsibility to apply for
t he PFD under existing | aw.

M5. MOSS noted the bill contains a provision for the |egal

guardian to petition the court for the PFD. Section 8 requires
that practitioners of the healing arts involved in the delivery
or care of a child who deternmines the child is adversely
affected by a controlled substance or alcohol nmust notify OCS

Section 9 comes from a recommendation from the Ctizens Review
Panel . Section 10 contains indirect court rules. Section 11 is
the applicability to pending and non-pending cases. Section 12
is the imedi ate effective date

CHAIR SEEKINS asked for a definition of “practitioner of the
healing arts.”

M5. MOSS read it the definition as, “includes chiropractors,
mental health counselors, social workers, dental hygienists,
dentists, health aides, nurses, nurse practitioners, certified
nurse aides, occupati onal t her api st s, occupati onal t her apy

assi st ant s, optometri sts, ost eopat hs, nat ur opat hs, physi cal
t herapi sts, physical therapy assistants, physicians, physician’s
assi st ant s, psychi atri sts, psychol ogi st s, psychol ogi cal

associ at es, audi ol ogi sts and speech |anguage pathol ogists,
hearing aide dealers, marital advisors, religious healing
practitioners, acupuncturists and surgeons.

10: 06: 25 AM

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -12- March 28, 2006



CHAI R SEEKI NS asked whether the list was all-inclusive.
M5. MOSS deferred to the Departnent of Law.

JAN RUTHERDALE, Assistant Attorney GCeneral, Departnment of Law
(DAL), indicated the definition was very precise.

CHAI R SEEKINS expressed concern with ternms of I|imtations of
prosecution for soneone inplied to be on the list but was not on
the |ist.

M5. RUTHERDALE specul ated a prosecutor would only attenpt a case
with a person on the |ist.

CHAI R SEEKINS suggested specifying the practitioner of the
healing arts as defined in AS 47.17.290(13).

M5. RUTHERDALE agr eed.
10: 09: 00 AM

M5. SANDOVAL added the original intent of HB 408 was to conply
with federal |aw

REX SHATTUCK, Staff to Representative Mark Neunman, expl ained
that Section 9 is |anguage from HB 346 and adopts | anguage from
the Keeping Children and Famlies Safe Act of 2003 into state
statute.

10:12: 01 AM
SENATOR HUGGE NS asked whether the Citizens Review Panel report
was confidential.

M5. SANDOVAL said by statute they have an obligation to rel ease
the report to legislators and then it becones a public docunent.

M5. MOSS affirmed that it is a public docunent.

SENATOR HUGE NS said the report Ilists weaknesses with Mat-Su
Valley OCS. He asked whether the bill addressed and corrected
t he weaknesses.

10: 14: 57 AM
M5. SANDOVAL said as the deputy conmm ssioner her responsibility
is to ensure that corrections to system weakenesses happen.

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked Ms. Sandoval to comment on whether HB 408
strengt hens the confidence |evel of the comunity.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 13- March 28, 2006



M5. SANDOVAL said she is commtted to reviewing all of the
confidentiality laws and co-training assistant attorney generals
as well as OCS staff. There are inconsistencies around the state
regarding the anount of information shared. Everyone involved
will be re-trained according to current |egislation.

10: 18: 37 AM

M5. MOSS advised the commttee that the l|legislation would give
OCS transparency and allow the public to see nore of what OCS is
doing. The systemis not broke it's just that the policies have
not been inplenented in the past.

SENATOR GUESS asked whether the change to five working days was
in conflict with the recent decision by Select Comrittee on
Legi sl ative Ethics on confidentiality.

10: 20: 57 AM

M5. MOSS replied the Ethics decision dealt with hearing officers
and do there would be no contradiction between the bill and the
deci si on.

SENATOR GUESS asked whet her “clear and convincing” was a higher
standard that “preponderance of evidence.”

M5. MOSS replied yes. It puts a higher burden of proof on the
DOL to term nate parental rights.

SENATOR GUESS asked Ms. Mdss to comment on the committee
substitute (CS) before the commttee.

MS. MOSS stated it contains the addition of Section 9.

10: 23: 01 AM

SENATOR FRENCH asked for explanation of the higher burden of
proof standard. He clarified there are certain situations in
which the court does not order changes in the behavior of the
parent in order to allow the child to return hone.

M5. RUTHERDALE said whenever a child is renoved the state mnust
prove they have attenpted to keep the child in the hone even if
that involves correcting of parental behavior. Once they have
removed the child, OCS nust show reasonable efforts to correct
the behavior so the child can return hone, such as getting an
al coholic parent into rehabilitation. If OCS conmes to the
conclusion that the child can never return honme and they change

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -14- March 28, 2006



their plan to termnation of parental rights, they nust show
with clear and convincing evidence that reasonable efforts have
been made to return the child hone.

In 1998 the Legislature decided that it would be an exercise in
futility for OCS to nake reasonable efforts in sone cases. For
exanple, if the parent has nurdered a child and is in jail there
woul d be no need to waste their resources.

10: 27: 02 AM
SENATOR FRENCH asked for expl anation of Section 2.

M5. RUTHERDALE advi sed Section 2 is already in law and the state
already has to prove that a child is a “child in need of aide”
due to the parent’s behavior and that the parent hasn’'t renedied
the behavior so that the child can return honme. Section 2
increases the standard to prove that the state has nade good
attenpts to return the child hone.

Wen the statute was enacted in 1998 it didn't contain the part
about “reasonable efforts.” That was added |ater because federal
funding required it. It has since cone to the attention of the
DOL that there is a legitimate constitutional reason for the
hi gher standard.

10: 29: 42 AM
SENATOR HUGAE NS asked Ms. Sandoval whether the Onbudsman has a
role in CCS.

M5. SANDOVAL responded yes. They can review cases and nake
inquiries and the OCS is required to respond.

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked whet her OCS has contract enpl oyees.

M5. SANDOVAL said OCS does engage in grants in contracts wth
agencies in the community that provide direct services to
famlies.

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked whether that creates a recurring problem
in that Onbudsmen do not have the authority to get information
fromcontract enpl oyees.

M5. SANDOVAL responded that was not a routine concern.
10: 31: 16 AM

SENATOR QUESS referred to Section 7 and said she knows a foster
parent who is concerned about handi ng over 18 years of PFDs to a

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -15- March 28, 2006



young person. She asked whet her there has been any discussion on
that and whether there should be options for children who have
been in long-termchil dcare.

M5. SANDOVAL replied the OCS has regional independent |[iving
specialists who plan with youth who are aging out of the system
They work with them on successful transitions and they do
consi der the amount of cash that the child is about to receive.

10: 33: 13 AM
CHAIR SEEKINS commented once the child is out of state's
custody, the law requires the state to give themtheir noney.

SENATOR THERRI AULT added unless the state has deened the child
is not capable. Absent of that it is a property right.

SENATOR HUGGE NS noved to adopt version L as the working docunent
before the commttee. Hearing no objections, the notion carried.

CHAIR SEEKINS held the bill in commttee.

There being no further business to cone before the conmttee
Chair Seekins adjourned the neeting at 10: 34:43 AM

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 16- March 28, 2006



